
 
Board of Commissioners 

Regular Business Meeting 
910 N Gary Ave 
Premier Room  

 
April 22, 2024 

6:00pm 
 

1. Call To Order 
  
2. Roll Call – Pledge of Allegiance 
  
3. Listening Post  
 Guidelines for Listening Post are provided in the pamphlet near the sign in sheet. Anyone 

wishing to address the Board should sign in. The Board President will invite you to speak; you 
will be asked to state your name and place of residence for the record. The Board asks you to 
limit your comments to three minutes. If a question is raised, a response will be provided in 48 
hours. 

  
4. Changes or Additions to the Agenda 
  
5. Consent Agenda 

All items listed are included in the Consent agenda. There will be no separate discussion of these 
items. Members of the public may petition in writing that an item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda.  

A. Approval: Regular Minutes: April 8, 2024 
B. Ratify: First Quarter Treasurers Report 
C. Resolution Honoring Anthony Del Preto 

  
6. Discussion Items  

A. Board of Commissioner Policy - Conflict of Interest Parameters 
B. Weekly Happenings 

  
7. Action Items  

A. Approval: Indoor Pool Re-plastering Contract Award  
  
8. Closed Session  
 A. Pending Litigation, Section 2(c)(11) 

B. Purchase or Lease of Real Property, Section 2(c)(5) 
  
9. Action pertaining to closed session 
  
10. Adjournment 

 



 

Board of Commissioners 
Regular Meeting 

April 8, 2024 
6:00pm 

 
1. Call to Order Commissioner Jeffery called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
   
2. Roll Call/Pledge of 

Allegiance 
Present: Commissioners Sokolowski, Gramann, Jeffery, Bird, and Witteck. 
Commissioner Powers attended via teleconference. Staff: Executive Director Rini, 
Directors Bachewicz, Hamilton, Scumaci, and Quinn, Superintendent Adamson, 
and Executive Assistant Greninger.  

   
3. Listening Post Todd Powell from the Carol Stream Parks Foundation mentioned the Foundation 

was hosting a Chipotle fundraiser on April 24; the annual Duck Race is scheduled 
for June 22.  

   
4. Changes to the 

Agenda 
None 

   
5. Consent Agenda Commissioner Sokolowski made a motion to accept the consent agenda as read. 

Seconded by Commissioner Gramann. 
A. Approval: Regular Minutes: March 11, 2024 
B. Ratify: March 2024 Bills  

Voice Vote. All in favor. None Opposed. Motion Passes. 
Commissioner Bird made a motion to approve the consent agenda as read. 
Seconded by Commissioner Witteck.  

Roll Call Vote: 
Commissioner Bird: Aye Commissioner Powers: Aye 
Commissioner Gramann: Aye Commissioner Sokolowski: Aye 
Commissioner Jeffery: Aye Commissioner Witteck: Aye 

Motion Passes 6-0-0 
   
6. Discussion Items A. Selection Process for New Commissioner 

Board President Jeffery reviewed options for the Board to appoint a 
Commissioner to fill the vacancy created by former Commissioner Anthony 
Del Preto’s resignation. Conversation included conducting interviews, 
selecting a candidate based on suggestions, or preparing a letter seeking 
interested candidates from the Foundation and volunteer base. 
Conversation ensued. Staff will proceed by drafting a letter for Board to 
send to interested Foundation members and active volunteers. 
Commissioner Bird asked if there is a conflict of interest if a Foundation 
member would serve on both Boards. We don’t want anyone to step down 
from the Foundation Board. Commissioner Gramann asked about a 



 

potential conflict of interest for Affiliate leaders. Commissioner Jeffery said 
we should discuss amending the Board Policy to encourage Affiliate 
leaders to recuse themselves on Affiliate votes. Executive Director Rini will 
also check with IAPD to ask if there is legal advice for Foundation or 
Affiliate Board members. Topic turned to presenting a lifetime 
membership to the fitness center and water park to past Board Members. 
Everyone agreed that a Resolution should be prepared to recognize 
Anthony Del Preto service to the Board and community. 

B. Weekly Happenings 
• Commissioner Sokolowski asked about the Armstrong sled hill. 

Director Hamilton reported the Village shoreline project at Armstrong 
is 50% complete. The sled hill will be comparable to the one at 
Northside Park in Wheaton. The expected completion date is 
Memorial Day. 

• Commissioner Gramann brought up the Park Tour Evaluations. The 
due date is approaching and she requested an extension. 
Commissioner Jeffery asked if we can extend it to May 1. Director 
Hamilton agreed. Commissioner Gramann offered to take the parks 
assigned to Commissioner Powers; he was appreciative and accepted 
her offer. 

• Commissioner Witteck thanked staff for hosting the Women in Leisure 
Services Lunch and Learn scheduled on March 13. The event was 
beautiful. Commissioner Jeffery added that Facebook comments 
about birthday parties, preschool and senior events are all positive.  

• Commissioner Bird attended the Foundation Meeting in March. The 
momentum is growing and they are doing a great job. Duck sales are 
on. Executive Director Rini added that the Foundation has pledged to 
add a bench at each park as they are improved. Plans for Community 
Park are in the works. They also plan on installing a bike fix-it station 
at Memorial Park. 

   
7. Action Items A. Approval: Adult Overnight Trip Payment 

Director Bachewicz described the Adult Overnight trip scheduled in June to 
Cape Cod. The funds for the trip payment are covered by registration fees 
paid by the registrants.  
Commissioner Bird made a motion to approve payment not to exceed 
$61,512 to Diamond Tours Inc. for the summer Adult Overnight Trip to 
Cape Cod, MA. Seconded by Commissioner Gramann. Voice Vote. All in 
favor. None Opposed. Motion Passes. 

B. Approval: Board of Commissioner Policy Correction, Section 2.11 
During review of the Board of Commissioners Policy Manual, typos and 
duplicate wording were noticed in Section 2.11. The policy does not mirror 
the law (70 ILCS 1205/2/-25). 

https://www.google.com/search?sca_esv=254eb9c569a53dbc&sca_upv=1&rlz=1C1GCEA_enUS1022US1022&sxsrf=ACQVn0-fIvszwJwNYjH8gOZmH4iA9jzYSg:1711983167457&q=Massachusetts&stick=H4sIAAAAAAAAAONgVuLUz9U3MM02L05axMrrm1hcnJicUVqcWlJSDABCWenIHQAAAA&sa=X&ved=2ahUKEwjI2LqkoqGFAxXwkIkEHWKICoYQmxMoAHoECDwQAg


 

Commissioner Sokolowski made a motion to approve wording corrections 
in the Board of Commissioners Policy Manual, Section 2.11. Seconded by 
Commissioner Witteck. 

Roll Call Vote: 
Commissioner Bird: Aye Commissioner Powers: Aye 
Commissioner Gramann: Aye Commissioner Sokolowski: Aye 
Commissioner Jeffery: Aye Commissioner Witteck: Aye 

Motion Passes 6-0-0 

C. Approval: Pickleball Courts – Armstrong Park  
Pickleball courts were ranked high on the Community needs Assessment. 
Director Bachewicz requested a quote from Sports Court Midwest. We 
received a Senate Initiative DCEO grant for $50,000, which will cover a 
third of the cost. Construction will start as soon as we confirm grant 
requirements; it could be completed as early as Memorial Day. No bid is 
required as Sport Court Midwest is a member of Sourcewell purchasing 
cooperative.  
Commissioner Gramann made a motion to approve the purchase and 
installation of Pickleball Courts from Sport Court Midwest, Elmhurst, IL at 
Armstrong Park on the existing inline skating rink for $155,600. Seconded 
by Commissioner Sokolowski. Voice Vote. All in favor. None Opposed. 
Motion Passes. 

   

8. Closed Session Commissioner Sokolowski made a motion to enter Closed Session at 6:44 pm to 
discuss Purchase or Lease of Real Property, Section 2(c)(5). Seconded by 
Commissioner Bird. Arose from Closed Session at 7:07pm.  

   
9. Action Pertaining 

to Closed Session 
None 

   
10 Adjournment Commissioner Sokolowski made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by 

Commissioner Witteck. Voice Vote taken. Motion passed 6-0-0. Meeting 
adjourned at 7:08pm. 

 
 
       ___________________________ 
       President 
       Jacqueline Jeffery 
___________________________ 
Secretary  
Sue Rini 
 
April 22, 2024 
Date 



���

� �������	
����	����������������������������������������������������������� �

� � ��  !"#$%#&'�(#%")!#%#*)�+%,-#$��./0123�4526�789/8:�;515<=56�>?@�ABAC�DE#)$� !"#$%#����������������� F#%)%G$%H�(-��� IJK�K���L�MMJ������K�����N�L�MMJ��J�K����� D#-O���� PJ���	��M��JQ�RJ��������S�IJK�K���T�U��� � �



���

� �������	
����	����������������������������������������������������������� �

� ��!�""�#$%&�$��� ��'()*+,*-.�/*,)0(*,*10�2,34*+�!���� ��5���"�	����6����7�8$���$���!���� ��!$����9��������!�!$���"�:�����%�$%&��8���6;���<�=����������>(**,?+�@(?A�B)-)?C,� � � � � � � � � � � � � DEFEG�HI�JKLGH�M��� N�� �����%$%&�!�%��;�"�%�����������%���%���$����O�"��������N�� ���%�$""��:�!�%���P��O$%&=�QR5�=����$�=�S$�;$"$�:=��%��R��QT������ ���������������!�� ��5���������Q�%����� ��8$���$���$����$""���9�$�������U"�O:V�;:�!�%�=�;���#$""���������%�� �"��� ����""����$%��%��5���������Q�%�����N�� ��Q$������������>4WXY?,A�@(?A�B)-)?C,�Y0�Z[\]̂_\_̀ à�� $��$%�"������""�������$%&=������$���������!�%��=�� ��;�"�%����!�� ��;�%����������=����$��"=��%������$��b����"���6�%����""�����c�� ��!$����9��������%�$%&�!�%��;�"�%���!����""�d3,*)+Y?e�@(?A0�Y0�Zf\gĝ\]]ha�� $����6������!�O���;":����� �����<�!$����9��������%�$%&�;�"�%����!�i<=�j�=<���������$%&�!�%���$%�"�������� klmnlmopqrklmnlmopq�sts�� � uvkw�sqxmqopylzrsqxmqopylz�sts�� � w{|yp��}o~yz��t��y��pyz�� � � � v�su��yo�y�yp��� �N�� ���,)*�+4��)+,���/���C�)?e,�Y?�+�,�d3,*)+Y?e�@(?A�B)-)?C,�!��6�;�&$%%$%&�;�"�%������!"�����������������!�i�=���=��j��� $��$%�"������ ��!$�������%�!����!�ij��=����!��6�� ��5���������Q�%������ ��%�#�5��$��"�R6���O�6�%��Q�%�=�;�����6������6�����%!�O���;":����� ��!$����9�����������������!�i���=<���$%����<��%��� ������������!�ijj�=����$%�������c�Q$�������������:�$��"":����!��6�������"������N�����"�>)3Y+)-��4--)*0��O�$"�;"������i�=<j�=��j���



��������	
��� �������� ����� ���
 
��� ����� �!�� �"#���� �"#�"���� $�"#��"# %��&�����'( )��������� �������� �����������*+ �����** �����,* �����,, �����,- �����,. �����,/ �����*, �����,+ �����,0 �����,1 �����-+ �����-, �����.,232345�6789�6:�;<=> *?0+-?.@*A���� *1-?-.*A���� *+/?/,.A���� **0?100A��� *+?-0+A���� *0+?/1,A��� *.1?*@.A��� /@+?,,-A�������� *?10+?,0BA����� ,-?+++A������� *++?+++A��������� *?0B*?**0A��� CA������������ 0@*?B,/A�������������� @?*,/?+,BA����������232345�6789�DEFGH=I>�;<=>J ,?,,1?/+/A���� ,?/,+?.B+A����������)����#" 4KLMNK4NOP���� 2QMKM52P���� NRLK44MP�������� 2KQOLK4OSP����� 4MKLLLP������� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KOS2K22OP��� TP������������ OR2KS4NP�������������� RK24NKL4SP����������U����� �V"� W/.1?@,@XA������ W*1?**-XA����� CA������������ CA����������� CA���������� CA����������� CA������������ B?10.A������������� .0?/,,A������������ ,@,?@*@A���� CA����������������� CA��������������� 0++?+++A���� *?*+/?@+,A����������� *?,/0?*0/A����������;<=>�6787=YI�23M2 2KMSNKOMSP���� 2R5K44SP���� TP������������ TP����������� TP���������� TP����������� TP������������ NRQK2RRP�������� 2KQQOKSSLP����� 4QOKR2RP���� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KOS2K22OP��� OLLKLLLP���� 2KNRSKO4QP����������� SKMQ2K2S5P�����������"����� �V"�� W,.@?.@1XA������ B-@A����������� CA������������ CA����������� CA���������� CA����������� CA������������ @?0,.A������������� W0*?.,+XA����������� W,B?.B.XA����� CA����������������� CA��������������� CA������������ W0/*?-,@XA������������� WBB+?-0+XA������������;<=>�6787=YI�434S 2K2MQKLOQP���� 2ROKLNOP���� TP������������ TP����������� TP���������� TP����������� TP������������ NSNKRL2P�������� 2KQ55K5OQP����� 4NRK4MMP���� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KOS2K22OP��� OLLKLLLP���� 2K22RK4L2P����������� RKO2LKSM5P����������!��#(�V"�� W*0@?-*1XA������ W*0?,-@XA����� CA������������ CA����������� CA���������� CA����������� CA������������ B?/+@A������������� W,,,?**.XA������� W0+?B1-XA����� CA����������������� W.?.++XA���������� W,*?+--XA���� ,.*?/..A�������������� W,,+?@.0XA������������;<=>�6787=YI�M3M2 QS2KRMQP�������� 2OQKS4SP���� TP������������ TP����������� TP���������� TP����������� TP������������ NQOKMLSP�������� 2KR44KM5OP����� 42NKM5LP���� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KORNKR2OP��� 5RSKQNRP���� 2KMOSKS5OP����������� RK4QLKLSSP����������
����V"�� CA���������������� CA������������ CA������������ CA����������� CA���������� CA����������� CA������������ CA����������������� CA������������������ CA������������� CA����������������� CA��������������� CA������������ CA����������������������� CA����������������������;<=>�6787=YI�53ML QS2KRMQP�������� 2OQKS4SP���� TP������������ TP����������� TP���������� TP����������� TP������������ NQOKMLSP�������� 2KR44KM5OP����� 42NKM5LP���� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KORNKR2OP��� 5RSKQNRP���� 2KMOSKS5OP����������� RK4QLKLSSP����������!� �V"�� CA���������������� CA������������ CA������������ CA����������� CA���������� CA����������� CA������������ CA����������������� CA������������������ CA������������� CA����������������� CA��������������� CA������������ CA����������������������� CA����������������������;<=>�6787=YI�O3M2 QS2KRMQP�������� 2OQKS4SP���� TP������������ TP����������� TP���������� TP����������� TP������������ NQOKMLSP�������� 2KR44KM5OP����� 42NKM5LP���� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KORNKR2OP��� 5RSKQNRP���� 2KMOSKS5OP����������� RK4QLKLSSP����������U��"�V"� CA���������������� CA������������ CA������������ CA����������� CA���������� CA����������� CA������������ CA����������������� CA������������������ CA������������� CA����������������� CA��������������� CA������������ CA����������������������� CA����������������������;<=>�6787=YI�N3ML QS2KRMQP�������� 2OQKS4SP���� TP������������ TP����������� TP���������� TP����������� TP������������ NQOKMLSP�������� 2KR44KM5OP����� 42NKM5LP���� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KORNKR2OP��� 5RSKQNRP���� 2KMOSKS5OP����������� RK4QLKLSSP����������U�� �V"�� CA���������������� CA������������ CA������������ CA����������� CA���������� CA����������� CA������������ CA����������������� CA������������������ CA������������� CA����������������� CA��������������� CA������������ CA����������������������� CA����������������������;<=>�6787=YI�R3M2 QS2KRMQP�������� 2OQKS4SP���� TP������������ TP����������� TP���������� TP����������� TP������������ NQOKMLSP�������� 2KR44KM5OP����� 42NKM5LP���� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KORNKR2OP��� 5RSKQNRP���� 2KMOSKS5OP����������� RK4QLKLSSP����������
���'��V"�� CA���������������� CA������������ CA������������ CA����������� CA���������� CA����������� CA������������ CA����������������� CA������������������ CA������������� CA����������������� CA��������������� CA������������ CA����������������������� CA����������������������;<=>�6787=YI�S3M2 QS2KRMQP�������� 2OQKS4SP���� TP������������ TP����������� TP���������� TP����������� TP������������ NQOKMLSP�������� 2KR44KM5OP����� 42NKM5LP���� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KORNKR2OP��� 5RSKQNRP���� 2KMOSKS5OP����������� RK4QLKLSSP����������$"��"��"��V"� CA���������������� CA������������ CA������������ CA����������� CA���������� CA����������� CA������������ CA����������������� CA������������������ CA������������� CA����������������� CA��������������� CA������������ CA����������������������� CA����������������������;<=>�6787=YI�Q3ML QS2KRMQP�������� 2OQKS4SP���� TP������������ TP����������� TP���������� TP����������� TP������������ NQOKMLSP�������� 2KR44KM5OP����� 42NKM5LP���� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KORNKR2OP��� 5RSKQNRP���� 2KMOSKS5OP����������� RK4QLKLSSP����������Z#���"��V"� CA���������������� CA������������ CA������������ CA����������� CA���������� CA����������� CA������������ CA����������������� CA������������������ CA������������� CA����������������� CA��������������� CA������������ CA����������������������� CA����������������������;<=>�6787=YI�2L3M2 QS2KRMQP�������� 2OQKS4SP���� TP������������ TP����������� TP���������� TP����������� TP������������ NQOKMLSP�������� 2KR44KM5OP����� 42NKM5LP���� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KORNKR2OP��� 5RSKQNRP���� 2KMOSKS5OP����������� RK4QLKLSSP����������V��"��"��V"� CA���������������� CA������������ CA������������ CA����������� CA���������� CA����������� CA������������ CA����������������� CA������������������ CA������������� CA����������������� CA��������������� CA������������ CA����������������������� CA����������������������;<=>�6787=YI�223ML QS2KRMQP�������� 2OQKS4SP���� TP������������ TP����������� TP���������� TP����������� TP������������ NQOKMLSP�������� 2KR44KM5OP����� 42NKM5LP���� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KORNKR2OP��� 5RSKQNRP���� 2KMOSKS5OP����������� RK4QLKLSSP����������["#"��"��V"� CA���������������� CA������������ CA������������ CA����������� CA���������� CA����������� CA������������ CA����������������� CA������������������ CA������������� CA����������������� CA��������������� CA������������ CA����������������������� CA����������������������\]̂�;<=>�6787=YI� QS2KRMQP�������� 2OQKS4SP���� TP������������ TP����������� TP���������� TP����������� TP������������ NQOKMLSP�������� 2KR44KM5OP����� 42NKM5LP���� 2LLKLLLP��������� 2KORNKR2OP��� 5RSKQNRP���� 2KMOSKS5OP����������� RK4QLKLSSP����������\]̂�DEFGH=I>�;<=>�6787=YI96<>_ÌI>�a=>H=_�678�T�Dbcd *?+.,?,1BA���� *B+?+-+A���� B0?/,.A������ **B?-,*A���� B?-1+A������� **+?0+BA���� *,-?+/BA���� /1,?,+,A��������� *?1@1?0.,A������ W*1*?@,-XA���� *++?+++A���������� *?00B?,.0A���� .0B?/.0A����� W--0?B-.eB,XA��������� 0?1,1?-*.A�����������6<>_ÌI>�a=>H=_�678�T��������������������Dbcd�f�ghDijjgc\k���"����l�0m*,� *?,B/?1+-A���� ,++?+++A���� �"������' �A����*.1?+*.��A�������B?1.,��A������1@?-/B��A����**@?0..� 0++?+++A��������� ,?@,.?++1A������ �"������' *++?+++A���������� �"���"��� �"������' �"������'�����*+ �����** �����,* �����,, �����,- �����,. �����,/ �����*, �����,+ �����,0 �����,1 �����-+ �����-, �����.,bnIo7̀H=_�;<=>�6I_�6787=YI9 5KSOLKLSNP�����������p��]7o_Ì�6787=YI�qEo�DEFnH=I>�DEonEo7̀I�7=>�g=YH887o:�;<=>J�HJ9 bnIo7̀H=_�;<=>�a=>�6787=YI9 MKOOQK442P�����������Dr7=_I�H=�bnIo7̀H=_�6787=YI9 s2K4QLKSNOtP���������
cIYoI7̀HE=3cIYcfc4KNR2KR5MP�����������������������������������4K52RKNO5P�����������������������������������

DEonEo7̀I�;<=>�������si=Y8<>IJ�DEon�cfcK�7=>�g=YH887o:�;<=>Jt

2KNNSK4MSP������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������DEonEo7̀I3DEoncfc3g=YH887o: 2K252KONRP������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�P������������������������2KSOQKRR4�

k����2J̀�u<7òIo�T�;HJY78�\I7o�a=>H=_�243M2345D<ooI=̀�;<=>�6787=YI�D7oE8�v̀oI7F�d7ow�̂HJ̀oHỲ cIJ̀oHỲI>�xJI�3�D7n�ayIFǹ�;<=>JcIYoI7̀HE=



���

� �������	
����	����������������������������������������������������������� �

 !"#$%&$'"%!�( )'*�+!,!-.!/�"-0�123!-/!/�4�5&-%678�9&:3"#;/&-�4�<==�>?@'A� � � � BCDCE�FG�HIJEF�K��� L��MN���M����NO�P�������Q�O��R�����O����O��O������S��T�O�������P��S����UU�V
WX	�Y��M���S���R�������NOZ���PP���R����N��P���PP���R��������T���[\�O��]�NO���������PP���̂R��O������N�P��������N�O���PP��������NO�P�����NO��M������P�����L�W����PP�S�O���M�Q���M����T��Z��P�����_���Z���̀��aMNP�����N��P�S�O���[����NSN��PPb�\�O����������̂�����NO��O�N�O�PPb����O����cO��O��cNPP�����P��NO���O�Z��NQ��O������L�>;#/%�d."#%!#�-!%�3!#e&#:"-f!�;-f7.0;-g�"77�e.-0/�;/�hijklmjm�n�VN����o����������S��T�O���N���b�N��PPb�O�Z��NQ���OP�����M����M���\��O���\�O��N����O����n����S��T�O���N���N��NTNP���������p�����Q��N�������p�b�����O��������P��S������N��P�����O�N�������S�qr����TNPPN�O��O���M�N����\��o��O����Q����P��NO��M��SN����o��������S�������aN�M�����M���SS����NOZ���bT�O���NO��M��SN����o������R��M��������O�N���������N���M�Q�������O���������N�NQ��\�P�O����n�aN�M�����M����������P���Q����P�R��M��O������S��T�O���c��P�������O�����[r�R�s�R�t�̂���MN��c��P����NPP�\���N��NTNP���������p��������P��Z�����N��P���bT�O���S���u�TT�ON�b����v���� ���� �



��������	
���� ����������� ����������� 
��������� ����������� ����������� �� ���� !"#$"%& '()%$"%& �*"%+, �-���� �-���� �-���� �-���� �-���� �.�/01234 5(6(#$( 789:41;<���������� ;48:9;7<������������ 49=:138<�������������� 3:4>3:387<������� 4:729:==><���� 8:3>7:389<������� 9:>27:9=1<������ 3:18=:1=3<������ 3;:183:=48<�����?@A(#B( 844:=2;<���������� 77;:;32<������������ 7=8:2=8<�������������� 1:337:;32<������� ;:13;:8;><���� 4:;;2:29><������� ;:1>3:=38<������ 4:3=>:;29<������ 3;:>32:17=<�����C(D E>3:;>3F<����������� E;24:>8;F<���������� E398:>>2F<������������� E4;4:3;9F<��������� 1:;=3:172<���� 3:>47:317<������� 3:419:484<������ E;:=3=:23;F<����� E4;>:;31F<���������1237 5(6(#$( 832:97;<���������� ;99:412<������������ 924:7;;<�������������� 3:972:738<������� 4:4;1:227<���� 7:==1:71;<������� 9:819:>11<������ 3:;2=:2>9<������ 3;:217:41=<�����?@A(#B( 4>8:344<���������� 789:;48<������������ 838:9=;<�������������� 3:=8=:224<������� ;:1=8:=;;<���� 4:187:=;><������� ;:488:91=<������ 4:47=:9;3<������ 39:91;:8=><�����C(D 31;:;2><���������� E;1=:>;8F<���������� E;33:>4=F<������������� E43>:;>>F<��������� 1:1;9:28;<���� 3:834:7>4<������� 3:398:;=;<������ E9:172:;98F<����� E3:;=8:17=F<������1238 5(6(#$( ;14:>;=<���������� ;33:8=7<������������ ;44:;21<�������������� ==1:=;8<���������� 4:=9>:211<���� 7:=92:=4=<������� 4:;=7:;98<������ 3:19;:149<������ 3;:4>2:472<�����?@A(#B( 427:43><���������� 7>9:938<������������ 84=:2;8<�������������� 3:=9=:=83<������� ;:78;:179<���� 4:71;:1;4<������� 1:=;8:43;<������ 4:721:;31<������ 39:37;:272<�����C(D E3>2:78=F<��������� E;81:713F<���������� E92;:8;4F<������������� E=48:2;9F<��������� 1:189:84=<���� 3:;38:819<������� 1:94>:>;9<������ E9:;4=:24>F<����� E4>1:422F<���������123> 5(6(#$( ;9>:2=3<���������� ;;=:417<������������ ;99:32=<�������������� 3:2;3:814<������� 7:128:2;4<���� 8:1;>:873<������� 4:;>>:248<������ 3:;9=:3;><������ 3;:=84:=44<�����?@A(#B( 422:82=<���������� 482:74><������������ 817:39;<�������������� 3:8=8:432<������� ;:;98:821<���� 4:394:131<������� 1:4=>:;=3<������ 7:237:=73<������ 3;:872:479<�����C(D E341:73>F<��������� E1;3:3;1F<���������� E;>1:2;9F<������������� E874:8>4F<��������� 1:>4=:;;;<���� 1:2=;:49><������� 1:8>=:777<������ E9:778:>1;F<����� 134:;=3<����������123= 5(6(#$( ;93:187<���������� ;94:>=4<������������ ;73:3;1<�������������� 3:29>:;2;<������� 7:3==:>>4<���� 8:19>:3>><������� 4:8=4:782<������ 3:991:23;<������ 39:9>4:>83<�����?@A(#B( 931:324<���������� 4>>:872<������������ 78=:3;1<�������������� 3:78=:==8<������� ;:>;3:=47<���� 4:433:=4;<������� 1:>41:1=4<������ 7:;49:=>2<������ 39:83=:11><�����C(D E82:>1=F<����������� E191:>74F<���������� E;3>:222F<������������� E7;3:7=9F<��������� 1:;78:=1=<���� 3:8;7:1;4<������� 1:=9;:;84<������ E9:=31:=78F<����� E1;;:;48F<���������1212 5(6(#$( ;4;:2;2<���������� 4=2:;>7<������������ 84:4>3<���������������� 3:23>:==8<������� 9:==2:182<���� 7:22=:178<������� 9:=;=:>29<������ >17:;3><��������� 33:884:;=2<�����?@A(#B( 9;3:147<���������� 743:83=<������������ 474:=3><�������������� 3:79>:>=;<������� 1:;;1:81;<���� ;:=>3:737<������� 3:89>:817<������ 7:392:478<������ 33:>82:=2><�����C(D E8>:117F<����������� E73:;;;F<������������� E9=2:;;7F<������������� E71=:>=7F<��������� 1:748:498<���� 1:218:741<������� ;:3=3:28><������ E4:;39:19>F<����� E=4:43>F<�����������1213 5(6(#$( 39=:>37<���������� 378:;>8<������������ 3=;:4=3<�������������� 432:8=;<���������� =:422:=9=<���� 32:233:891<����� 4:784:>3=<������ =41:>31<��������� 37:792:;8;<�����?@A(#B( ;24:8>8<���������� 9;9:724<������������ 948:>28<�������������� 3:3=>:122<������� 1:824:>44<���� ;:=29:244<������� 1:942:81=<������ 7:932:178<������ 31:874:243<�����C(D E344:=83F<��������� E178:13=F<���������� E179:138F<������������� E7>8:928F<��������� 7:8=4:2=9<���� 7:328:7>8<������� ;:114:2=2<������ E4:948:944F<����� ;:>84:;11<�������1211 5(6(#$( 18;:917<���������� 19=:>21<������������ 13>:43;<�������������� 893:892<���������� 8:84=:718<���� >:423:;78<������� 7:2;3:;83<������ 3:;1=:>78<������ 34:>71:729<�����?@A(#B( ;=1:181<���������� 49>:181<������������ 4>;:733<�������������� 3:419:349<������� ;:9>=:931<���� 4:23;:477<������� 1:=2>:942<������ >:114:4;2<������ 37:398:497<�����C(D E33>:>97F<��������� E1=>:982F<���������� E;74:2==F<������������� E8>1:939F<��������� 9:182:134<���� ;:9>8:>23<������� ;:311:=12<������ E7:>=4:77;F<����� E1>9:=91F<���������121; 5(6(#$( ;89:19;<���������� ;79:;71<������������ 9;7:;;=<�������������� 3:389:=99<������� 8:984:=33<���� >:742:>44<������� 7:>78:7>8<������ 3:74;:>9=<������ 38:381:;=3<�����?@A(#B( 992:832<���������� 714:>77<������������ >=4:7==<�������������� 3:=71:184<������� ;:>4>:;18<���� 4:>12:721<������� ;:912:=84<������ =:49=:231<������ 3>:8=2:4>=<�����C(D E77:977F<����������� E173:424F<���������� E94=:;72F<������������� E8>8:;;3F<��������� ;:738:4>4<���� 1:>;2:14;<������� ;:997:831<������ E8:>=4:37;F<����� E3:73>:3=8F<������1219 5(6(#$( 9>2:299<���������� ;>3:>72<������������ 848:19;<�������������� 3:73=:397<������� G<���������������� 3:73=:397<������� G<������������������ G<������������������ 3:73=:397<�������?@A(#B( E8>4:331F<��������� 3:171:132<�������� =88:=>=<�������������� 3:944:2>7<������� G<���������������� 3:944:2>7<������� G<������������������ G<������������������ 3:944:2>7<�������C(D 3:174:347<������� E>>2:;42F<���������� E112:894F<������������� 379:272<���������� G<���������������� 379:272<���������� G<������������������ G<������������������ 379:272<����������

H��-��I����J�K��L� �������� �M�N�����O�PQR�����S�T-����U�H-JR����-�������������S�
����������P����V���W��W��/00�
XY I�S�H-����R-�����-�H�����ZS�



���

� �������	
����	����������������������������������������������������������� �

 !"#$%&$'"%!�( )'*�+!,!-.!�"-/�012!-3!3�4&52"#!/�%&�6./7!%�8�9::�;<='>��� � � � � ?@A@B�CD�EFGBC�HIJ��� K�	LMLN�������O���������O����LP�QO����RS��OL���O����LP�N�����T�������U�������V��M�P�����M���������W��X����P��LP�N������YY�Z
[U	���\���N������]L�����O�������P��X��̂_̀��V��O��W��X����Q�M�����L]��LPV��M��L�P�V������a�L��LP�N�����V�����V���P������K��OL���O������VN����������LPXS�Q��L��NS�Q������M��S��P��	���L�N��������L�P���]�P�����P������P������K������T�������U������]�P���L��b�c�_��V��O���PP��N�W��X��S�dL�O�����P�������c�ae_��V��O���PP��N�W��X������� ���������



������������	�
�������������� ������������	�
��������������
������������������������������	���� ������������������������!�����	���� ���!�"#$ �%#&'(�������������������	���� ���!�"#$ �%#&'(��������������������	���� �)*�)+,---,---�).-,---,---�).+,---,---�)/-,---,---�)/+,---,--- �'%�(�0 %�'1�2'%3�
#$ %#& 4
�5�6�7���8��9:�7$��'$������	���� ��$ �;�'% �%�<=#$&'(�4�'%��7�#7����>!�>������=��
0�

������������	�
���������������!�"#$ �%#&'(

5�6�7��$ �9:�7$�$5�6�7��$ �9:�7$�$

?@ABCD�EFGH

5�6�7��$ �9:�7$�$5�6�7��$ �9:�7$�$



���

� �������	
����	����������������������������������������������������������� �

 !"#$%&$'"%!�( )'*�+!,!-.!�"-/�012!-3!3�4�5&-%678�9&:2"#;3&-�4�<=0+>)?@A�BC@'D�� � � EFGFH�IJ�KLMHI�K��� N��OP���O����PQ�R�����S.##!-%�"-/�6;3%&#;S"7�#!,!-.!T�!12!-3!T�"-/�-!%�2!#U&#:"-S!�U&#�<2!#"%;-V�B.-/3��W�X���������W�X�������������P��Y����R���Z�Q��W��������P�Q�����P��Y����R���Z�Q��W��������P�Q�W���[PQ\�Y�]P\O�PQ\�� N�B;#3%�̂."#%!#�-!%�2!#U&#:"-S!�U&#�<2!#"%;-V�B.-/3�;3�(_̀TabcTdef*�W��O��gP����h��������i�P��RRi�Q����Q�\��P[�����g��Z�Q����W�jP����h����������g��Z�Q���P����Z�kO���Z����Q�\��P[���O�Q����l�kO�Q���Z�[PQ\��O��mn��o�������Q�g���g��Z��O��X���������j�Q������O��Q�k�X��P��R�pZ���[�Z�Q��j�Q������
W�jpX��W����P��W�]P�qPRP�i�W p��j



���������
	
�������� 	
������� ���������� ��������� ���
������ ���
���������� ���������� 	
���������������� 	
���������
 ���������� �� 	
���������
 !����"����# ��$���# %��&� �'���
 '��!����� �'���
 '��!����� �'���
 '��!����� �'���
 �� ��'��!���� �'���
 �'��� ��'��!���� ()������*+�*�� +�*�� +�*�� �'���
 +�*�� +�*�� +�*��,-./0121341 56789:,;����� 9/68.9/;����� /7<8..:;����� .8/:-859/;���� .:=:> 9896<8-99;���� 7-=,> 78</<855:;���� /<=-> ,8:-:8/5.;���� 6865:8,,<;����� <,=7> 5,.8-9<;��������� :89:<8,5<;���� <<=:> :87-78<,/;��������?@A13B1 5,/86:6;����� /5/8/97;����� /</8:</;����� .86:68,.5;���� ,.=9> ,8.9<869/;��� ,/=/> 98<,58</,;��� 75=:> ,87/68./5;��� 589:78.-:;���� 65=.> .8<,58,/:;����� :89.-8955;��� <<=-> :89<98/5:;�������C1D 7:8/</;�������� E,-:89<<F;���� E758666F;������ E,-58/:.F;������ .8,9<8,<:;���� .8-9,86.5;���� 9/.87-/;�������� .89:78.,.;����� E.89-/8,.:F;���� 6:8<-9;���������� ..89/6;�������������,-.50121341 6.-897:;����� 99<8,6-;����� 7-/8/96;����� .87//8.//;���� .6=,> 98..7865,;���� 95=<> 78/5<8<.6;���� /7=.> ,85968,7-;���� 68,-68./6;����� :/=9> <668:.6;��������� :8.:78<69;���� <5=:> :87/,8.,7;��������?@A13B1 /,.8://;����� /5987,7;����� /6<8:,/;����� .855/8.-9;���� .<=6> .8:-98<<<;��� ,.=7> 9875<8.-,;��� 7.=.> ,8//58:-5;��� 58-,/8<-6;���� 6.=9> .8<9/8-7.;����� 68<5-8<7:;��� <7=,> :877:89:6;�������C1D .::87<9;����� E,,78./7F;���� E.678,:6F;���� E,-<8<7:F;������ .89.-8657;���� .8.--8:./;���� :-8797;���������� .8.:.8,/-;����� E</68,,/F;�������� ,,78-,/;�������� 98696;���������������,-.60121341 9,-8/77;����� 9-<86.-;����� 9/78:6:;����� <:/8.9.;�������� ..=5> 989558:/5;���� 9<=/> 789/.8<::;���� /.=.> 98-598<9/;���� 687./8<,,;����� :6=-> .8-<58,-9;������ :8/.,8.,/;���� <<=<> :8/,78:/,;��������?@A13B1 7<:8975;����� /6.8/-9;����� 59:85-7;����� .86-:87/9;���� .<=:> ,8-<58-<5;��� ,7=9> 98:-78/7<;��� 77=,> ,897/8.:<;��� 58.7<869:;���� 6.=7> ,8-7,8.97;����� :8.<.8:6.;��� </=.> :85.78<,/;�������C1D E.668:-,F;���� E,5.86<9F;���� E,:986,5F;���� E6,989,,F;������ .8,6-865.;���� /76879<;�������� 6.:8675;�������� .8,558.:7;����� E<7/8<9.F;�������� 9,-8,/7;�������� E<-8-69F;������������,-.:0121341 9778/,/;����� 99/85<<;����� 97985,.;����� .8-,98:7/;���� .,=-> 987-68:.:;���� 9<=<> 7879.8559;���� /,=-> 98../8:5<;���� 68/768/99;����� ::=/> .8-<7859-;������ :857,8.59;���� .-.=9> :8/9-8/</;��������?@A13B1 7:58.<-;����� //-8:99;����� 5,:8,7-;����� .855/8,5,;���� .<=-> ,8.5/856<;��� ,7=:> 98:9-8<7.;��� 79=:> ,8,-/8,.9;��� 58-958./7;���� 5<=-> ,8.,989<6;����� :8./<8//.;��� <9=9> :867586/<;�������C1D E.7.855/F;���� E,./8.99F;���� E,:785.<F;���� E57.87.6F;������ .8,7,8.9<;���� 5--86,,;�������� <.-85/6;�������� .8/..896<;����� E.8-,:8655F;���� 7:,85.,;�������� E,.58.57F;����������,-.<0121341 99:8//7;����� 97-8,/<;����� 9/,8/.6;����� .8-9.899-;���� ..=:> 9879:8<.6;���� 9<=,> 7876-8,7:;���� /.=-> 98./787.:;���� 685,78555;����� :5=<> .8.9-8.,<;������ :86/786</;���� <<=:> :866-8.6-;��������?@A13B1 9<-8--9;����� /978<5.;����� 59/8,<9;����� .8/5-8,/6;���� .:=7> ,8,<.85/9;��� ,6=-> 98:/.8<..;��� 7/=9> ,8,:<8/<,;��� 58.7.8/-9;���� 6,=9> ,8,.<8.9:;����� :895-857.;��� <:=7> :87<78:,:;�������C1D E/.877<F;������ E.<786-,F;���� E,:,8666F;���� E/,:8<,6F;������ .8.768,57;���� 5.:8996;�������� :578:,5;�������� .87:98.59;����� E.8-:<8--<F;���� 9<78./7;�������� ,6/897,;�����������,-,-0121341 9/-8/9/;����� 7-687</;����� ,768:66;����� .8--/8<-6;���� ..=-> ,8..78/,-;���� ,9=,> 98.,-87,6;���� 97=,> ,896<85.6;���� /8/--8-77;����� 5-=9> /7<86-<;��������� 58-7<86/,;���� 55=7> <8..789,.;��������?@A13B1 7-78.5-;����� 5,78</9;����� /5-86:9;����� .8/:<8:<5;���� .6=:> .8../8/<7;��� .,=/> ,86-/87<-;��� 9-=7> .87/6875,;��� 78.5,8</9;���� 75=6> .86,98-59;����� /8::58-.5;��� 55=-> :8<..86,-;�������C1D E/985,/F;������ E,.687/:F;���� E9.,8<-5F;���� E/:98<:<F;������ <<:8<,/;�������� 7.78<95;�������� <,,8.//;�������� .89968-<.;����� E.8.6989//F;���� .598695;�������� ,-,85-.;�����������,-,.0121341 .,<86.7;����� .5-8/,.;����� .<98/:,;����� 7:98:.:;�������� 6=.> 98-<5876.;���� 7/=9> 98/:-8,::;���� /,=7> 98.9785-9;���� 586.78:<,;����� <:=9> :5785,<;��������� 68/6<8/,-;���� ..-=<> 58:9,8:/5;��������?@A13B1 ,568::9;����� 9<.8///;����� 7..8<5-;����� .8-6.89<:;���� ./=:> .86658.5.;��� ,5=,> ,8:768//<;��� 7,=.> .8::.8:9<;��� 786,<89<6;���� 5<=<> .8<-587:7;����� 5859/8::,;��� <:=.> 5865589:-;�������C1D E.9:8.5<F;���� E,9.8-97F;���� E,.:8966F;���� E/:68/:-F;������ .89,-89.-;���� 69,869-;�������� .8,/,865/;���� .8<:/87<7;����� E.8-7.8:/5F;���� <79859<;�������� 558765;�������������,-,,0121341 ,698979;����� ,7<86,6;����� 9,/87:7;����� :7:8//7;�������� .-=7> 986<68<:.;���� 75=:> 785758/9/;���� /6=,> 98,558:96;���� 68<.9896,;����� <6=7> .8.6/8-7,;������ <8-::87.7;���� ...=<> :8.,.8/.5;��������?@A13B1 9/78/-,;����� 7:68::/;����� /5,8<6/;����� .87-/8959;���� .6=6> ,8,7:8-:,;��� ,:=9> 985/9877/;��� 75=.> ,87:.866.;��� 58.9/8,.6;���� 66=7> .8<,<8:9-;����� :8-5/8-75;��� .-.=6> 68<9-8-.<;�������C1D E:.8.5-F;������ E,9:8./:F;���� E,9687<,F;���� E//58:-<F;������ .8/7<8:<:;���� <<98-:<;�������� 6:/8-55;�������� .866:8.//;����� E6/786:6F;�������� .8-,9895:;���� .<.87<6;�����������,-,90121341 956877.;����� 97/8<6:;����� 7,/8./:;����� .8.9:8/66;���� .,=.> 78.6689.5;���� 77=,> /89./8:<7;���� /5=9> 986/78.57;���� <8-6-8-/6;����� <5=-> .8,<78<6/;������ .-895/8-9,;�� .-<=6> <87778,6:;��������?@A13B1 7.-8,-9;����� /5<8<75;����� :7686</;����� .8:,68<77;���� .<=<> ,89<78.<9;��� ,5=.> 78,,,8.96;��� 75=-> ,8<958-.7;��� 68./:8./,;���� 66=<> ,89-,8/-7;����� <875-85/5;��� .-9=-> <8.:98:.:;�������C1D E7,865,F;������ E,,98<5:F;���� E7,,8596F;���� E5:<8956F;������ .86:98.,9;���� .8-<986/5;���� :.:8.7<;�������� .8<..8<-5;����� E.8--68/9-F;���� <-78965;�������� ,5-875-;�����������,-,70121341 9/-8-9/;����� 96/86.7;����� //.8:/6;����� .8,6685-6;���� .,=7> G;���������������� -=-> .8,6685-6;���� .,=7> G;���������������� .8,6685-6;����� .,=7> G;����������������� .8,6685-6;���� .,=7> .-89968,9-;������?@A13B1 <578,<<;����� 5558,/9;����� <968<,.;����� ,8/5:876,;���� ,9=6> G;��������������� -=-> ,8/5:876,;��� ,9=6> G;���������������� ,8/5:876,;���� ,9=6> G;���������������� ,8/5:876,;��� ,9=6> .-8:76899/;�����C1D E5.78,59F;���� E,<-8/9<F;���� E9:58-59F;���� E.8,<-8:5/F;��� G;���������������� E.8,<-8:5/F;��� G;���������������� E.8,<-8:5/F;���� G;����������������� E.8,<-8:5/F;��� E/.-8.-/F;����������.-�G�HIJAIJKD1�L�MNN�M3OPNNKJQ�R43SBT�ULV8�RWHM8�M4SPD8�VPKXPNPDQ8�WY0R..�G�HIJAIJKD1�01AKPJ�L�01ANKO1Z13D.,�G�01OJ1KDPI3�01AKPJ�L�01ANKO1Z13D,-�G�01OJ1KDPI3

��
&������
[��'��\����]�̂��_� �
���&���� �̀�a���
�b�cd)��
�����%'����#�['])���
'�
	
�������������
&��������c����*�	�e�	e�f��(̂c̀!�ghi��jh \���['���
)'��
��'�[����
�[�	k�[��k�[��



���

� �������	
����	����������������������������������������������������������� �

 !"#$%&$'"%!�( )'*�+!,!-.!�"-/�012!-3!3�4&52"#!/�%&�6./7!%�8�9:0+;)<=>�?@='A� � � � BCDCE�FG�HIJEF�HKL�� M��NO���N������P�QOP�R����N��������ORS��������N���T��R����UQ�������V�R����R������R����U��������ORS�W�R����X�Y�Z���V�R��������[�T�\\T]�\��R���������R������̂��U��N���RR��Q�_��S����X�Y�Z�����R��������[�T̀]aT�\���R���������R���b�\̂��U��N���RR��Q�_��S�������� !"#$%&$'"%!�( )'*�+!,!-.!�"-/�012!-3!3�"3�"�c�&d�6./7!%�8�9:0+;)<=>�?@='A�$�e� !"#�fg3%&#h�� � BCDCE�FG�HIJEF�HKi���NO���N������UQ�������V�R����R������R����U��������ORS�W�R����N���SN��N��UO����j����������M��N���N����O�����O��Qk�̂�_����������N���RR��Q�_��S������S����V��k�U��P�k�������k���T�O���N��Q��R���_����R�O�������N���RQk����Q�U���P�����ORS����U��P�R�������=!%�:!#d&#5"-l!�8�9:0+)<=>�?@='A�$�e� !"#�fg3%&#h�(m3%�n."#%!#*�� � � � � �����������BCDCE�FG�HIJEF�HKo���NO���N������UQ�����p������U��P�R���U��������ORS�W�R���U����N������j������T����q�QQ�����N�������N���SN���N�j���������U��N��UO���Q�k�����M��N���N�����R��N��Q�U��OR�Q�������̀�k����NO����k��U�R������U��P�R���d&#�%r!�dg#3%�s."#%!#��RQk�tu�R�W�_����v��M��N���N�����R��N���OSN��OR�Q�������̀�k����NO����k��U�R������U��P�R���%r#&.7r�%r!�d&.#%r�s."#%!#�tu�R���k�wZ���P_��v�����



������������	�
�������������� ������������	�
��������������
������������������������������	���� 

������������������������������	���� �����!"# �$"%&'��������������������	���� �����!"# �$"%&'�������(�����(�(����	���� �)*�)+,---,---�).,---,---�)/,---,---�)0,---,---�)1-,---,---�)1+,---,--- �&$�'�2 $�&3�4&$5�
"# $"% 6
�7�8�9���:��;<�9#��&#�&���	���� ��# �=�&$ �$�>?"#%&'�6�&$��9�"9����@��@��A4�7�B���?��
2
������������	�
�����������������!"# �$"%&'

CDEFGH�DIJK

7�8�9��# �;<�9#�#



���������
���������

�	�
��

�	�

������������

������������������
����������	��
���

�	������

����
������
������

������������� ��!�"#$��#%�&'"�(�)�*+��,�-./�*$���$�����0�1+23��
$��4+������56#$%���&����-*2#*3�
�7�
7��8 -(9':;<�6=;"��5�5&����>#$���?
��������������������

-./�*$�$(�)�*+�$ -./�*$�$-./�*$�$(�)�*+�$ -./�*$�$

@ABCDE�AFGH



4th Quarter Net Performance 1st-4th Quarters - YTD Net 

2011

2011

2020
$(583,989)

2020
$163,736 

2021
$(587,580)

2021
$943,639 

2022
$(556,809)

2022
$1,023,368 

2023
$(689,367)

2023
$904,376 

2024
$(1,290,865)

2024
$(1,290,865)

 $(1,600,000)

 $(1,400,000)

 $(1,200,000)

 $(1,000,000)

 $(800,000)

 $(600,000)

 $(400,000)

 $(200,000)

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

Carol Stream Park District
Net Performance

1st Quarter vs. 1st THRU 4th YTD - Fiscal Year Ending 12/31/24
OPERATING FUNDS - 5 Year History

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

(Chart C-3)

1st THRU 4th - YTD Net Performance1st Quarter Net Performance



���

� �������	
����	����������������������������������������������������������� �

 !"#$%&$'"%!�( )'*�+!,!-.!�"-/�012!-3!3�4�5&-%678�9&:2"#;3&-�4�+09+0<)=>?�@A?'�� � � BCDCE�FG�HIJEF�K���LM���L����MN�O�������P�N��Q�����N��Q��N��N������R��S�N����R��NOT��L��+!U#!"%;&-�@.-/����N�T������R������M��MN�O�������� V�@;#3%�W."#%!#�N������R��S�N����R��L��+!U#!"%;&-�@.-/�XY�N���TZ����L[�M��X\��]Q̂��[��_�̀ M����a�������N������R��S�N���M���T�M��OOT�N�b��MP����_��L��������N����������M�������MNb��L��RM����a��������_�c����N�MN��������MOMd������R��������P�N����L���MNb��T���S��_��LM��a���������RO�����O����R�P���eO�����R��S�N�����S����������L����S��a�������MN����fQ�e����T�M��O����V�0"#78�g&#!U"3%3�36&h�%6"%�"�-.:i!#�&g�2#&j#":3�"#!�%#!-/;-j�k"%l�&#�ki!%%!#�%6"-�i./j!%!/l�#!,!-.!�7!,!73m�_�n���L��L������L�������L����op��R�e��b����_�qTS���N��O��L�P������L�����p��R�e��b����_�n���L�r��s��e�OO�L�������L���̂tp��R�e��b����_�n���L�u��b�e�OO�L�������L���ôp��R�e��b����_����O��	������v��b����L�P������L����]p��R�e��b����_�	������wN������M�N�O�L�������L���f�p��R�e��b����_������L��O�L�������L���f�p��R�e��b����_�qTSN���M�����MP����v����N��L�������L����]p��R�e��b������� �� ��



��������	
��������� 
����� ���������� ������ ���������� ��������� ���������� ������  �!�������  �!��� 
��" �!��� ��������� #�������$�����% ��&����% '��(! ������ �����#��� ������ �����#��� ������ #������ ������ �����#��� ������ �����#��� ��� #������ )�(��������*��+�� *��+�� *��+�� *��+�� *��+�� ������ *��+�� *��+��,-./0121341 5./6789:���������� ;,86;<.:���������� ;886<85:����� .6;,-68;5:���� ,,=<> .6</.6,79:��� ;,=-> ;6.8.69</:��� /7=<> .65<.6..-:���� ,9=.> /9;67./:������ .-=;> /67756/-9:��� 97=,> /68<;688.:������?@A13B1 ;<56,8<:���������� ;9867<,:���������� 7,56/,.:����� .6,.-6,<,:���� ,-=9> .6;;;67-7:��� ,;=.> ,6/7;65<5:��� 77=-> .68/.6<,<:���� ;-=;> .6,9<67/9:��� ,,=/> /6/9;698,:��� 95=<> /688<6;<8:������C1D ,,96,-.:���������� E8-6.-.F:����������� E7<657/F:������ ..-67/7:������� /.86<7/:������� 5,<6,99:������� E8-68.<F:�������� E8-/6-77F:������ E.78675;F:������ /6;</:��������������,-.50121341 58/6-/9:���������� ;,96<-9:���������� ;<56/5.:����� .6;9.67;-:���� ,;=9> .6<,96/98:��� ;.=/> ;6,,.6-,8:��� //=7> .67976--/:���� ,/=8> <,96,59:������ .7=;> /6/776;-.:��� 9/=7> /6<.;6;97:������?@A13B1 ;5,6.5<:���������� ;9-6<<5:���������� 7.,6/5;:����� .6.5/65.<:���� ,-=;> .6,;76988:��� ,.=/> ,67--6/97:��� 7.=<> .68986-7,:���� ;.=;> .6,87685;:��� ,,=,> /678,6;99:��� 9/=7> /68;<655<:������C1D ;.,6<9.:���������� E5.6-88F:����������� E,56--.F:������ ,,/6<.,:������� /9765,-:������� <,-67;,:������� E;-;6-;8F:������ E77/6797F:������ 8.69-,:���������� 8768,5:������������,-.80121341 ,986,-,:���������� ,9-6,9/:���������� ;;-6/7,:����� 9.<6-;9:������� ./=5> .69<76.<.:��� ;;=8> ,69-,6,,-:��� 79=;> .6<996/97:���� ;,=;> 9776/58:������ .5=-> /68756;<.:��� 98=5> /6<<86,/8:������?@A13B1 ;7;69/-:���������� ;<869,<:���������� 75-6-,,:����� .6.9.69--:���� ,-=5> .677.6,..:��� ,/=-> ,65;;6...:��� 7/=5> .657<6,89:���� ,<=/> .6;556<87:��� ,;=8> /657<6,5/:��� 98=<> /68876.85:������C1D E75687<F:����������� E9865;;F:����������� E.,967<.F:���� E,8;6<5.F:������ /7,698-:������� ,596.-9:������� ,/.6;./:������� E7,,6;-8F:������ 9<6..8:���������� ..;6-<.:����������,-.<0121341 ;,76989:���������� ;.,6;9/:���������� ;-<6/<;:����� 97/69/8:������� .5=,> .699,6/-;:��� ;7=-> ,69;<675-:��� /-=,> .69/96/,/:���� ;;=/> 97868.9:������ .5=,> /6<7/68-7:��� 99=<> /6</565<.:������?@A13B1 ;,-6;7-:���������� ;5-6<<8:���������� 7-56-<-:����� .6-<86;-8:���� .<=9> .6797675/:��� ,5=-> ,6/<.688,:��� 77=9> .65,<675/:���� ,<=;> .67.765,8:��� ,7=5> /65,76<5/:��� 98=<> /68/.6,-,:������C1D E;6<;;F:������������� E.86</;F:����������� E,-6.9;F:������ E.7.6;/-F:������ 79<6-;<:������� ;/565<<:������� ;;.6-5-:������� E75569-<F:������ ,,-6<;9:������� .-/6789:����������,-.90121341 ;.76<-<:���������� ;.56;,-:���������� ;;;6-7-:����� 9576.5<:������� .5=,> ,6-.86/-<:��� ;;=9> ,69<.6585:��� /-=.> .69./6<;9:���� ;,=,> 98-68;/:������ .5=;> /6<5<6,/-:��� 9<=8> /69756</,:������?@A13B1 ,/;6955:���������� ;7,6..8:���������� 77/6/9<:����� .6-7.65<.:���� .8=9> .6/5;67;/:��� ,5=<> ,65-/6..5:��� 77=8> .658/687.:���� ,<=<> .678-6..9:��� ,/=,> /68/-6985:��� 9<=8> /6<,/6.9;:������C1D 5-6<7,:������������ E,/6898F:����������� E..,6//9F:���� E886/.;F:�������� 7/76-87:������� ;856/5-:������� ,7-6-9<:������� E7996;<7F:������ ..86,87:������� .,.65/9:����������,-,-0121341 ;,96.//:���������� ;5<675<:���������� ,/,6,<-:����� 97969-7:������� ./=9> /<-6;,7:������ 9=8> .6/;-6,,<:��� ,/=5> .6-,<6<<9:���� .8=,> ;9/68<<:������ 5=5> ,69/769-/:��� 79=/> /69876/87��������?@A13B1 ,5;67-9:���������� 7,<687.:���������� ;55657;:����� .6-/<6897:���� .8=9> /5-6;--:������ 9=/> .65.96-97:��� ,8=7> <.;6,8/:������� .;=<> 88-6.5/:������ .;=-> ;6,-,6/;7:��� /7=,> /69-<6;;8��������C1D 5/6875:������������ E5-6,8;F:����������� E..76;5;F:���� E.-<6<9-F:������ ,-6-,7:���������� E<<6<55F:�������� ,./65.7:������� E;876;8<F:������ E,7865,9F:������ 556,;8:������������,-,.0121341 .--6</5:���������� .7/6879:���������� .5.6.;/:����� 7-8687.:������� .-=.> .68..6-77:��� 7,=;> ,6..<68</:��� /,=7> .6<5;69;.:���� 75=.> 85,6<;.:������ .<=<> 7687/6/75:��� ..8=;> 76-786;;.��������?@A13B1 .;76;7,:���������� ,-76<.-:���������� ,.,68<,:����� //.69;;:������� .;=8> .6.-,657;:��� ,8=/> .65/76/85:��� 7.=,> .6,;;6.75:���� ;-=8> .6.8,6<.-:��� ,9=,> 76-5-6/;;:��� .-.=.> 76-.76<85��������C1D E;;67<5F:����������� E/96-5-F:����������� E/.6578F:������ E.776.9;F:������ 5-<67-.:������ 7576,-<:������ 5;-68</:������� E7-969<-F:����� 5</6-.;:������ ;,67//:������������,-,,0121341 ,7,69-;:���������� ,7;69;;:���������� ,8<6989:����� 85/6<./:������� ./=,> ,6.;567<<:��� 7,=7> ,69-,6;-;:��� /8=5> .6<956.77:���� ;8=5> 95,655,:������ .9=.> /685.6.-9:��� ..7=;> /6-7-65.;��������?@A13B1 .9-678;:���������� ,996,<5:���������� ;,8659;:����� <.867/,:������� .5=/> .675-67/8:��� ,9=7> ,6,8869-9:��� 7/=9> .65,96/<<:���� ;,=<> .6.8,6<-,:��� ,;=5> /6-<-6,99:��� .-,=;> 7695/6/<,��������C1D /,67;-:������������ E//6;/,F:����������� E7<68.7F:������ E/.65;8F:�������� 5856-;.:������ 5,76;97:������ ,556///:������� E,.-6.7-F:����� 5<-6<.-:������ 8/6-;,:������������,-,;0121341 ;.86<;7:���������� ;;.6/5,:���������� ;;/6589:����� 9</6-8/:������� .5=<> ,6;<<6--5:��� 7-=5> ;6;8;6-<.:��� /8=7> ,6.8;69-7:���� ;8=-> 99<67/-:������ .8=-> 56/7/67;/:��� ...=;> /6<<-6;;/��������?@A13B1 ,,-6<5.:���������� ;//6.-7:���������� /,;6,9;:����� .6-996,/<:���� .<=9> .6/7-6-75:��� ,5=/> ,65;96;-7:��� 7/=7> .69556<5;:���� ;;=9> .6;/;6;;5:��� ,;=;> /69/96/-;:��� .-,=5> /6<-<6-<;��������C1D 95698;:������������ E,;6/7,F:����������� E.<865.7F:���� E..76.<;F:������ <78695-:������ 8;;6888:������ ,-86-7.:������� E;/76<<8F:����� /</69;,:������ 8,6,/,:������������,-,70121341 ;-86-8-:���������� ;/,69/,:���������� ;/56;95:����� .6-.567.<:���� ./=/> G:��������������� -=-> .6-.567.<:��� ./=/> G:��������������� -=-> G:��������������� -=-> .6-.567.<:��� ./=/> 56/5569-5��������?@A13B1 ,5.677<:���������� 7-76;8,:���������� /8<6/.-:����� .6,776;;.:���� .9=-> G:��������������� -=-> .6,776;;.:��� .9=-> G:��������������� -=-> G:��������������� -=-> .6,776;;.:��� .9=-> 56/;865,,��������C1D 7/65,,:������������ E/.67,-F:����������� E,,,6..7F:���� E,,869.,F:������ G:��������������� E,,869.,F:����� G:��������������� G:��������������� E,,869.,F:����� ,96,<7:������������

�������(�� 
����������"����(��������H����+�
�I�
I� �����)�J������K�HLM�������"�'���!�%�N�OM�������N�����P����O�Q��R�������(�ST�STUVWXY�Z[Y��\��]��̂_̀]ab_��]������_��\cd��\ed��ab��\f



���

� �������	
����	����������������������������������������������������������� �

 !"#$%&$'"%!�(!)!*+!�"*,�-./!*0!0�"0�"�1�&2�3+,4!%�5�(-6(-789:;�<=;'�� � � � � >?@?A�BC�DEFAB�GHI���JK���J������L�MKL�N����J��������KNO��������J���P��N����QM������J��R��������������S�N����N������N����Q����J���������K�N�T�N���U�V�W���S�N���K��X�P��YP��Z��N���������N����[�[\��Q��J���NN��M�]��O����U�V�W�����N��������X�P���P̂̂ ���������N����_��\��Q��J���NN��M�]��O������ � !"#$%&$'"%!�(!)!*+!�"*,�-./!*0!0�"0�"�1�&2�3+,4!%�5�̀� !"#�ab0%&#c� � � � � � >?@?A�BC�DEFAB�GHd���JK���J������QM�������S�N����N������N����Q����J���������K�N�T�N������������N��O���Q��J��]��O������U�����J���NN��M�]��O������O����S��R�Q��L�R�������R���P��������������N��O���Q����Q��L�N�������;!%�e!#2&#f"*g!�5�̀� !"#�ab0%&#c�hi0%�j+"#%!#�klm�i0%$�n%o�j+"#%!#p�� � � � � � � >?@?A�BC�DEFAB�GHq���JK���J������QM�����r������Q��L�N���Q����J���������K�N�T�N�����U��J���J�����N��J��M�Q��KN�M�����N������Q��L�N���Q����J��QK����s��������NMR�tu�N���R�������Jv��U��J���J�����N��J���KOJ��KN�M�����r������Q��L�N����J���OJ��J��Q����J�s�������tu�N���R�wW���L]��v���� �



2024 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

$6,566,906

2024 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

$6,537,622

2024 
ACTUAL

$1,016,418 
~

15.5%
of Budget

2024 
ACTUAL

$1,244,331 
~

19.0%
of Budget

2023 
Historical
$985,075 

~
16.8%

of Budget

2023 
Historical

$1,099,258 
~

18.9%
of Budget

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

Carol Stream Park District
YTD Revenue & Expenses as a % of Budget 
1st Quarter - Fiscal Year Ending 12/31/24

RECREATION FUND

2024 ANNUAL
BUDGET
2024 ACTUAL

2023 Historical

(Chart D-1)

Revenues Expenses



2020
15.9%

2020
17.9%

2021
10.1%

2021
13.7%

2022
15.2%

2022
16.5%

2023
16.8%

2023
18.9%

2024
15.5%

2024
19.0%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

Carol Stream Park District
YTD Revenue & Expense as a % of Budget
1st Quarter - Fiscal Year Ending 12/31/24

RECREATION FUND - 5-Year History

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Revenues Expenses

(Chart D-2)



2020
$(108,890)

2020
$(247,629)

2021
$(144,193)

2021
$685,013 

2022
$(51,637)

2022
$680,810 

2023
$(114,183)

2023
$585,932 

2024
$(227,912)

2024
$(227,912)

 $(400,000)

 $(200,000)

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

Carol Stream Park District
Net Performance

1st Quarter vs 1st thru 4th Quarter - Fiscal Year Ending 12/31/24
RECREATION FUND - 5 Year History

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

(Chart D-3)

1st Quarter - Net Performance 1st THRU 4th YTD - Net Performance 



���

� �������	
����	����������������������������������������������������������� �

 !"#$!%�&� !"'()*+"$�&�,"*-#!%�.*-/*!$#01�.*2*13*4�!15�()"*14*4�6�701$8%9� 0+"!/#401�� � � :;<;=�>?�@AB=>�C����DE���D����EF�G��������H��I�F���H����D��H�GG�JEFK�H�F����L�	���E�G��������E�F�L�M��NEFK�O��D�L�P�F��Q�RF�������L�O��E��G�S�F��O��E��G�����E��Q����G���I�F�T��L�O��D�EF�UE������V�	���E�G��������E�F�E��������E�G�����S�����E����T�H�F�����V�O��E��G���GG��������EF��F�E�F�GGW����F����JF���V����H��I�F���E���G���������G���H��EIEFK�SJD�F���������������EX���H���Y�F����WI�F��T����Z0154[��� V�\��Y�F����EF�E��G����EF���������WI�F���J����I����EF��D��HE����]��������H���������



��������	
��������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ��� !"#!$% &'($#!$% )!$*+ �,���� �,���� �,���� �,���� �,���� �-�./0123 4'5'"#' 2627������������������ 8107������������������ 997��������������������� 3627������������������� 0:003:9;37������ 0:00;:31;7����������� 2:99<:9827������ ;3=:0307��������� 6:==0:;==7�������>?@'"A' 281:22;7���������� 9<:<<;7������������ 212:0127����������� 809:1967����������� 2:1<6:1187������ 2:618:19;7����������� =06:<;17���������� 8:0<0:16<7����� 3:699:9187�������B'C D209:9<;E7�������� D9<:6<3E7���������� D212:210E7��������� D80=:330E7��������� 2:232:9;07������ =08:6217�������������� 2:2<8:2<17������ D0:;28:<93E7���� D;2<:023E7���������012; 4'5'"#' 2237������������������ 3:0327�������������� 9;7��������������������� 3:6;07��������������� 0:62<:0667������ 0:600:<1;7����������� 0:1=<:3=87������ 882:0;<7��������� 6:=62:33;7�������>?@'"A' ;3:8117������������ 221:9867���������� 28<:;;=7����������� 828:9107����������� 2:698:9867������ 2:=1<:=8;7����������� 2:101:;067������ 8:;86:8917����� ;:6;0:=317�������B'C D;3:2=3E7���������� D213:;=8E7�������� D28<:3<0E7��������� D81=:661E7��������� 908:8217���������� ;26:=<17�������������� 2:1;;:9397������ D8:818:208E7���� D2:;02:096E7������012< 4'5'"#' 3:0937�������������� 0:1=;7�������������� 6067������������������� <:=137��������������� 0:3=2:2;;7������ 0:3==:9<27����������� 0:880:6207������ 26<:1307��������� 3:1;=:6837�������>?@'"A' =:2<07�������������� 220:9267���������� 201:6807����������� 062:32=7����������� 2:3<<:2;=7������ 2:=2=:;=;7����������� 390:8067���������� 8:3;1:2<97����� 3:9<2:2=97�������B'C D0:=<;E7������������� D221:=0=E7�������� D201:119E7��������� D088:<28E7��������� 2:118:99=7������ <<1:0=;7�������������� 2:<61:1==7������ D8:628:20<E7���� D910:<36E7���������012= 4'5'"#' 8:3;;7�������������� 8:=0;7�������������� 6==7������������������� <:==17��������������� 0:<99:02<7������ 0:=1<:19<7����������� 0:0<0:2==7������ 036:31<7��������� 3:888:<907�������>?@'"A' 26:3297������������ 29:=0;7������������ 9<:9187������������� 280:06<7����������� 2:2=0:1087������ 2:826:0<27����������� 898:2<97���������� 8:=98:3;67����� 3:;12:1287�������B'C D21:936E7���������� D23:999E7���������� D9<:623E7������������ D206:8;<E7��������� 2:;2<:2967������ 2:690:=0;7����������� 2:=<9:1197������ D8:;89:13<E7���� D0;<:002E7���������0129 4'5'"#' 0:<027�������������� 3:;8;7�������������� =:;237��������������� 2;:9<07������������� 0:<;1:9;=7������ 0:<<<:9617����������� 0:;62:0307������ 822:==67��������� 3:<82:1<;7�������>?@'"A' 00:2107������������ 38:<997������������ 68:=897������������� 229:<897����������� 2:361:8187������ 2:;;1:1687����������� 3;0:<187���������� 6:283:=607����� ;:83=:3=<7�������B'C D29:8=2E7���������� D6=:2;8E7���������� D83:008E7������������ D210:<;<E7��������� 2:001:;;37������ 2:22<:=9=7����������� 0:1<=:3697������ D8:=08:93=E7���� D;0<:322E7���������0101 4'5'"#' 0:69;7�������������� 2=0:=917���������� D2<0:09;E7��������� 28:1917������������� 0:=<3:<327������ 0:===:=627����������� 0:3;1:2=<7������ 0<;:;217��������� 3:<03:;8=7�������>?@'"A' 0<:19;7������������ 0;:<;;7������������ 3:2837��������������� 3=:99<7������������� 2:02<:2097������ 2:0<;:20;7����������� 092:0;87���������� 6:62<:3187����� 3:9=6:=907�������B'C D06:;12E7���������� 23;:2037���������� D2<<:682E7��������� D63:91<E7������������ 2:;3=:;007������ 2:;20:<237����������� 0:0;=:9067������ D6:261:=98E7���� D039:036E7���������0102 4'5'"#' 01:2107������������ ;:=;37�������������� =7����������������������� 0;:9<;7������������� ;:616:6<=7������ ;:682:6367����������� 0:362:02;7������ ==:2=87����������� 9:1;1:=307�������>?@'"A' 8<:9167������������ 68:1327������������ 63:=6=7������������� 20;:=107����������� 909:;967���������� 2:13;:69;7����������� 3;=:=917���������� 6:318:<=07����� ;:209:2;97�������B'C D2<:=10E7���������� D8;:2=3E7���������� D63:=61E7������������ D99:=0;E7������������ 3:6<6:<=67������ 3:8<6:93<7����������� 2:9<0:8037������ D6:623:399E7���� 0:982:;=67�������0100 4'5'"#' =87�������������������� <37�������������������� D21;:9<2E7��������� D21;:=26E7��������� 8:9;2:;6;7������ 8:=36:=807����������� 0:<;6:3867������ 236:=037��������� ;:<<6:2927�������>?@'"A' 8<:<;97������������ ;1:8=;7������������ 01:;8;7������������� 22=:<927����������� 2:062:8097������ 2:8;1:2027����������� 60;:;<97���������� ;:093:<127����� =:1=0:3117�������B'C D8<:;=;E7���������� D;1:820E7���������� D20<:;1<E7��������� D003:;13E7��������� 0:<01:82<7������ 0:696:<207����������� 0:88<:=337������ D;:261:=<;E7���� D2:81=:819E7������0108 4'5'"#' ;:=107�������������� 2=:8=67������������ 22:2=27������������� 8;:8;<7������������� 8:09=:3937������ 8:886:9;07����������� 8:228:3087������ 83=:=<67��������� ;:=1<:8397�������>?@'"A' 81:31<7������������ 33:9017������������ 6<:9167������������� 286:8807����������� 2:6;6:2887������ 2:39=:6;37����������� 6=6:9;17���������� <:06;:31<7����� 9:809:9887�������B'C D08:<13E7���������� D8<:38<E7���������� D8;:<08E7������������ D9<:9;3E7������������ 2:=86:6;27������ 2:<8;:69<7����������� 0:;0=:3;87������ D;:==<:;88E7���� D0:300:3<8E7������0106 4'5'"#' 281:11=7���������� ;:26;7�������������� 013:8=;7����������� 862:3617����������� F7������������������ 862:3617�������������� F7������������������� F7������������������ 862:3617�����������>?@'"A' D2:<69:622E7����� 393:93<7���������� 61:1;=7������������� D2:228:8=;E7������ F7������������������ D2:228:8=;E7���������� F7������������������� F7������������������ D2:228:8=;E7������B'C 2:=<9:6297������ D3=9:=22E7�������� 2;3:82=7����������� 2:636:90;7������� F7������������������ 2:636:90;7����������� F7������������������� F7������������������ 2:636:90;7���������GH��I�J���GK�LMNG��OPQRS�TQUIPRMV�WXYZ[\]�̂YZ_Y\̀[abc�da_e[bf�g\hic�jabk�l�mb̀Y_Yh̀c�g\hi�[b�n[Yo�l�g\X[̀\]

���p������ q,rs����,��,��t,����u�q�s����v�q�swxy�rs�v�z�{s�p����|�p�����,�������q��,��{����r�}��~�������p�
�����������w����p��������x������
���
�����



���

� �������	
����	����������������������������������������������������������� �

 !"#$%&#!%$�'()�*+$,-.�/0/1�� � � � � � � � � � � � 23435�67�89:56�;���<���<����=������>>��?��@��<��A=���=��B��=CD���>�C���@����<�������C��@=���E�?��������F��<��������C�����=��E�=CD���>�C�����C=CG��=C��<��@=����H����������EE�@�C���<�D��I��C����C�@����������<��J��J���JCD���>�C��	<�����KE����L�C��M�N<=�<�������C�=������O=H�=��L�C��������H�=����I?����C����NC���H�=��>�C����L�C��P�E�C���=CD���>�C�����C�=����@�����=@=�������@������=���C���������?�I=EE����F��D���G��=C����������C������=CG��<��@=����H�������=��1QR11SQ��T��<����>�E��=D���D���G��@���=C����������C���=C����U�N���U�UV�W�T��<����>�E��=D���D���G��@���=C����������C���=C������N������X�W�T��<����>�E��=D���D���G��@���=C����������C���=C������N�����X��W�T��<����>�E��=D���D���G��@���=C����������C���=C������N�����YZ�W�T��<����>�E��=D���D���G��@���=C����������C���=C����[�N�����U��W�T��<����>�E��=D���D���G��@���=C����������C���=C����V�N�����[[[W�T��<����>�E��=D���D���G��@���=C����������C���=C����Z�N������VUW�T��<����>�E��=D���D���G��@���=C����������C���=C����Y�N�����X��W�T��<����>�E��=D���D���G��@���=C����������C���=C����X�N�������UW��F�JCD���>�C���������<���E���=C�E=C��N=�<���������?�E=>=���=�C�M��<��A=���=��B��=CD���>�C����E=�?M����C�=CG�C������C�����\������<���E������� �



��������	
�������������������������������
���
��� �!���"�����#��$��%����"�&��'�(�������



���

� �������	
����	����������������������������������������������������������� �

 !"#!$%&'()*+!#$%&'($,� !+$&#�-� !+,$"!.!(%�/0(1� � � � � � � � � 23435�67�89:56�;�� <���=>���������??@?A�����>��=��B�����?�����C�?�����>>����D�@?A��B@=��������� !"#!$%&'(�*+!#$%&'($,� !+$&#�-� !+,$"!.!(%�/0(1�������������>@�?����?���D��@����?���=���@E���C�E�?������<��B�����?@?A��D��A�����=�������������B����=��E�=@�?����E�ED���B@���?��>>E�?��=�����?���B��FG��H@�B�G>�?D����I@���@���JK�=����B��LM����>���<��B��I@���@�����?�@?�������E�N�����@���������?�=�����B@��O��������P!(!#$,)*+!#$%&'($,� !+$&#�-� !+,$"!.!(%�/0(1� � � � � � � � � 23435�67�89:56�Q�� <���=>���������??@?A�����>��=��B�����?�����C�?�����>>����D�@?A��B@=���������P!(!#$,�*+!#$%&'($,� !+$&#�-� !+,$"!.!(%�/0(1�������������>@�?����?���D��@����?���=���@E���C�E�?������<��B���?>O����?@?A��D��A�����=��������@��=��E��?�FG��H@�B�R@?=@�>�����N�I@���@���=������A���=��B��S��N����N�����T'.U&(!1� !"#!$%&'(�-�P!(!#$,�*+!#$%&'($,� !+$&#�-� !+,$"!.!(%�/0(1�� � � � � 23435�67�89:56�V�� <�	?���B����=��B�����@����D�A@??@?A�D�>�?�����=�D��B��B��G�?���>��?���������@�?�>�����@��W����>���E�?��L�?�����X�S�>�?����=��B��G�?���>������@�?�>��W��L�?��@��Y�Z[\J�K�K���X�S�>�?����=��B���������@�?������@�?�>��W��L�?��@��Y][Z\̂�J��K���



��������	
�������������������������������
���
���



��������	
�������������������������������
���
���



��������	
�������������������������������������������
���� �! "#���$����������������!����%����&�#'()#('*



Resolution No. 24-01 
A Resolution Honoring Commissioner Anthony Del Preto 

 
 WHEREAS, ANTHONY DEL PRETO was appointed to the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of 

the CAROL STREAM PARK DISTRICT in 2017 and served in this office continuously until March 

2024; and 

 WHEREAS, during that time, ANTHONY DEL PRETO, provided leadership that elevated 

CAROL STREAM PARK DISTRICT to earn the Illinois Distinguished Agency honor; and 

 WHEREAS, during his tenure, the Park District developed Carolshire Park and Simkus 

Playground, and improved McCaslin Park, Armstrong Park, Jirsa Park, Cambridge Park, Bierman Park, 

Park on the Green, Simkus Recreation Center, Coral Cover Water Park, and pathways throughout the 

District.  

 WHEREAS, Commissioner Del Preto encouraged strong financial management as evidenced by 

the District earning the GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting each of 

his seven years. During his tenure, the Elk Trail Recreation Center was sold for $600,000, bringing 

valuable capital for the repair and replacement program for parks and vehicles. Partnerships with multiple 

municipalities resulted in Intergovernmental Agreements between the Village of Carol Stream, Glendale 

Heights, Wayne Township, Glenbard School District 87, Community Consolidated School District 93, 

Benjamin School District 25 and Community Unit School District 200 which created cost savings and 

improved recreational amenities for residents. 

 WHEREAS, Commissioner Del Preto provided support to District leadership during the COVID 

Pandemic and shut down, leading to the Park District’s gradual recovery and renewed success. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the 

CAROL STREAM PARK DISTRICT that they extend their thanks, appreciation and recognition to 

ANTHONY DEL PRETO for his years of service as a park commissioner. 

 The Secretary is directed to forward a copy of this Resolution to ANTHONY DEL PRETO and to 

record the adoption of this document in the official record of these proceedings. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED the 22nd day of April, 2024. 

CAROL STREAM PARK DISTRICT   ATTEST 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
President      Secretary 



Lifetime Membership  

IS AWARDED TO: 

Anthony Del Preto 

IN RECOGNITION OF 7 YEARS OF SERVICE to the CAROL STREAM PARK DISTRICT  
as a member of park board of  Commissioners, a lifetime family membership to  

Fountain View Fitness Center and Coral Cove Water Park is hereby granted  

JACQUELINE JEFFERY, BOARD PRESIDENT APRIL 22, 2024 



 

 

To: Board of Commissioners 
From: Sue Rini, Executive Director 
Date: April 22, 2024 
Discussion: Board of Commissioners Policy – 
 Conflict of Interest Parameters Agenda Item #: 6A 

 
 
Commissioners, 
 
A copy of the current Board Policy, 3.0 Ethics and Conduct, which addresses guidance to avoid 
conflicts of interest, priority over outside influences, actions based on special interests, and 
when a Commissioner should recuse themselves from discussion and abstain from voting is 
provided for your discussion. 
 
I gathered corresponding policies from seven districts, and spoke to an additional six park 
districts on this subject. In comparing our policy to those reviewed, it addresses the same 
points and lays out clear guidelines. It may be more of a matter of educating new board 
members of those guidelines during their orientation, as well as reinforcing those parameters 
when conflicts arise. 
 
The policy is attached, and specific sections are highlight to aid in discussion.   
 

  



 

 

3.0   ETHICS AND CONDUCT 
 
Board members of the Carol Stream Park District are expected to be of high moral and ethical 
character and work together as a team to serve the community by delivering best in class park and 
recreation opportunities. In the discharge of their duties, Board members act collectively as a Board 
and not as individuals. Board members should always abide by the majority vote of the Board and 
support the determination of that majority. Also, an individual Board member should not speak for 
the Board unless authorized to do so by the Board. It would be improper and ill-advised for an 
individual Board member to make a public pronouncement or engage in conjecture about a Board 
matter that has not yet been decided, an action of the Board, or any matter that has been discussed 
in an executive session of the Board. Because each action taken by a Board member in the course of 
his or her duties should be motivated by the District’s best interests, a Board member should be free 
of undue outside influences and of self-interest. Board members shall abide by State laws related to 
conflicts of interests, financial or otherwise. A Board member shall advise the Executive Director of all 
memberships and financial interests that the Board member has in companies or organizations that 
are doing business with the District. 

 

3.1    Practical Application of Ethics 
In accordance with this policy, Board members will educate themselves about and comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations, and ordinances governing the conduct of the Park 
District’s elected officials. These include but are not limited to, the Public Officials Prohibited Activities 
Act, the Government Ethics Act, State Officials & Employee Ethics Act (and any related Park District 
ordinances), Official Misconduct, Bid Rigging Act, and the Illinois Human Rights Act. 
 
In addition, Board members must: 

• On an annual basis, file a statement of Economic Interests with the County Clerk of DuPage 
County. 

• Always keep the best interests of the Carol Stream Park District in mind. 
• Understand and respect the separation of Board responsibilities and functions from those of 

the Executive Director and staff. 
• Refrain from communication and/or involvement with outside groups that interferes with 

ongoing administrative activity by staff. 
• Be available and responsive to the residents of the District. 
• Represent all the residents of the District and avoid partisanship based on special interests. 
• Communicate with fellow Board members and the Executive Director. 



 

 

• Understand and follow all provisions of the Illinois Open Meetings Act, including executive 
session confidentiality. 

• Be properly prepared for Board deliberation. 
• Avoid public promises or statements regarding a vote or position on an issue prior to an official 

meeting. 
• Publicly support the implementation of majority decisions of the Board while maintaining the 

right to disagree. 
• Respect the confidentiality appropriate to issues of a sensitive nature. 
• Recognize that an individual Commissioner has no legal authority to determine policy, give 

directions to District personnel, or to act or speak for the Board unless specifically authorized to 
do so by official Board action. 

• When the Board must decide upon an issue about which a Commissioner may have an 
unavoidable conflict of interest, that Commissioner must observe all applicable ethical laws, 
rules, regulations and orders, including but not limited to, when applicable, disclosure of the 
interest, recusal from all discussion and deliberation, and abstention from any vote taking 
about the issue, or such other action as may be required by applicable state and federal law. 

• Develop productive relationships with other elected officials at the federal, state and local level. 
• Participate in Board development opportunities. 
 

3.2    Ethics Act 
Commissioners will conduct the duties of office in accordance with Ethics Ordinance No. 361, approved 
May 10, 2004. See exhibit B. 

 

3.3   Legal Authority 
The Board, as a whole, is the legal corporate authority of the District. As an individual, a Board member 
has no legal authority to determine policy, give directions to District personnel, or to act or speak for 
the Board unless specifically authorized to do so by official Board action. 

 

3.4   Representation 
Board members represent all of the residents of the District and shall not represent special interest 
groups. Board members should not make public promises or statements regarding their votes or 
position on an issue prior to an official meeting. 

 



 

 

3.5   Board Decisions  
Board members should make non-partisan decisions regarding District policies and operations based 
upon reports, facts, and studies and not upon personal interest or prejudice. 

 

3.6   Board Unity 
Board members should accept and endorse majority decisions of the Board and align themselves with 
Board policies, goals and objectives. Unless specifically delegated by the Board, an individual member 
has no power to act on behalf of or bind the Board. Such action by an individual Board member may 
result in personal financial liability.  Additionally, a Board member has legislative immunity only during 
a convened and legally called Board Meeting. 

 

3.7   Relationship to the Director 
Board members shall respect the delegation of authority and responsibility to the Director. Board 
members shall work directly with the Director rather than staff and shall not be involved in the day to 
day operations of the District. Requests for information concerning District operations and programs 
shall be posed to the Director. Suggestions for new policies shall be referred to the Director for study, 
appraisal and final recommendation.   
 
Complaints and recommendations brought to the Board shall be turned over to the Director for 
investigation and disposition or for his recommendation as to disposition by the Board. Board 
members shall support approved actions of the administration. 

 

3.8   Indemnification  
The Illinois Tort Immunity Act (745 ILCS 10/10-206) applies to officers, members of a board, 
commissioners or committees. Most of the statutory protections against causes of action arising under 
state law are contained in that Act. The immunities protect Board members for certain acts or 
omissions performed while performing their duties; it does not provide absolute protection against all 
claims. It expressly provides that it does not apply to cases brought under a breach of contract theory 
nor does it apply to, among other things, claims brought under the Worker’s Compensation Act (745 
ILCS 10/2-101). Additionally, the protections afforded by Illinois Law does not provide immunity against 
claims filed under federal law. The District’s Director and Attorney will guide and advise the Board on 
matters that represent risk. 
 



 

 

3.9   Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment 
Any commissioner of the Carol Stream Park District Board of Park Commissioners (“Park Board”) who 
believes that s/he has been sexually harassed by another Park Board Commissioner may file a complaint 
with the Park Board President. If the Board President is the reporting person or is implicated by the 
allegation, the report can be made to any other Park Board Commissioner.  Any report under this 
section must be referred to the District’s legal counsel. The District’s legal counsel shall promptly 
appoint a qualified independent attorney or consultant to review and investigate the allegations. The 
Executive Director and Board President are hereby authorized and directed to implement and 
administer the Policy in accordance with applicable law. 

 
 
 



 

President: Jacqueline Jeffery, Vice President: Brenda Gramann, Executive Director: Sue Rini 
Commissioners: Dan Bird, Tim Powers, Brian Sokolowski, Sara Witteck 

 

To: Board of Commissioners 
From: Shane Hamilton – Director, Parks & Facilities 
Date: April 22, 2024 
Approval: Indoor Pool Re-Plastering Contract AwardAgenda Item # 7A 

 
Issue 
Should the Board approve a contract with One Stop Pool Care, Lincolnshire, IL, for re-plastering 
the 8-lane lap pool and the therapy pool at the Fountain View Recreation Center. 
 
Background/Reasoning 
Normal lifespan for plaster in an indoor pool setting is 10-15 years. Fountain View Recreation 
Center sits at approximately 11 years old and it is time to address the plaster in both pools. 
After multiple discussions with our pool maintenance contractor in regards to increased 
maintenance costs the past couple years on the pool shells (plaster), it became evident re-
plastering was needed.  
 
Staff will be coming back to the Board at a future Board Meeting for an additional approval of 
$65,000 Change Order for the removal and replacement of all the tiles which serve as 
underwater lane lines in both pools. Their replacement was not part of the original bid package. 
We have confirmed with Corporate Counsel that rebidding is not necessary, but a formal 
‘change order’ for Board Approval will be necessary.  

 
Supporting Documents 
Bid tabulation form. 
 
Cost 
Plaster:  $124,000 
Tile Lane Lines  $  65,000 
Total  $189,000 
 
GL#:  12-5-00-00-748 
 
Budget for re-plastering both pools is $160,000. We are seeking approval of the first portion of 
the project at $124,000 (the base bid) to get One Stop Cool Care under contract.  Once under 
contract, staff will come back to the Board for approval of the tile lane line work. 

  



Public/Customer Impact 
The pool plastering work will take place during our annual Fountain View Recreation Center 
maintenance closure to minimize the impact to our customers.   
 
Recommendation 
That the Board approve a contract for $124,000 with One Stop Pool Care, Lincolnshire, IL, for 
re-plaster the 8-lane lap pool and the therapy pool at the Fountain View Recreation Center. 




	1 Board Meeting 2024-4-22 Agenda
	5A Board Meeting 2024-04-08 Minutes
	5B Treasurer Report-Q1-2024
	5C RES 24-01 Anthony Del Preto
	6A Board Policy Manual - Conflict of Interest
	3.1    Practical Application of Ethics
	3.2    Ethics Act
	3.3   Legal Authority
	3.4   Representation
	3.5   Board Decisions
	3.6   Board Unity
	3.7   Relationship to the Director
	3.8   Indemnification
	3.9   Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment

	7A Indoor Pool Re-Plastering
	8a Closed Session Litigation
	8b Closed Session Lease

